
P.O. Box 517, Satsuma, Alabama 36572~Phone (251) 675-1440~Fax: (251) 675-1442 
Police: (251) 675-0151~Fire: (251) 679-1640 

 

           
 
  

MINUTES 
OF 

August 4, 2015 
 

Pre-Council 
 

The City Council of the City of Satsuma, Alabama, convened in the Pre-Council Session 
at City Hall  in said city at 6:00 p.m. the  4th  day of August, 2015. Those present were: 
Mayor Paul Murray and Councilmembers:  William Hamblin, Mike Butler, Matt Dial, 
Tom Williams and Bill Black 
 
Mayor Murray discussed the agenda items.  
 
Bradley Sanders, Attorney with Phelps Dunbar was present in the absence of Jay Minus. 
Mr. Sanders called for an executive session to discuss economic development.  
Councilmember went into an executive session at 6:40 P.M.  Council reconvened at 6:50 
P.M. and adjourned from the Pre-Council Meeting.  

 
Regular Meeting 

 
The City Council of the City of Satsuma, Alabama, convened in the regular public 
session at City Hall in said city at 7:00 P.M. the 4th  day of August, 2015. 
 
Councilmember Black gave the invocation which was followed by the reciting of the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
The following were present: Mayor Paul Murray; Councilmembers: William Hamblin, 
Mike Butler, Matt Dial, Tom Williams, and Bill Black  
 

PAUL MURRAY 
MAYOR 

 
VICKI MILLER 
CITY CLERK 

 
CHRIS MCLEAN 

CHIEF OF POLICE 
 

CLYDE MILLER 
FIRE CHIEF 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 

WILLIAM HAMBLIN, PLACE I 

MIKE BUTLER, PLACE 2 

MATT DIAL, PLACE 3 

THOMAS WILLIAMS, PLACE 4 

BILL BLACK, PLACE 5 



C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g                  A u g u s t  4 ,  2 0 1 5          p a g e  | 2 
 

Also present were Bradley Sanders, in the absence of Attorney Jay Minus; Vicki Miller, 
City Clerk; James Elmore, Public Works Supervisor; Tom Briand, City Inspector, Police 
Chief Chris McLean and Fire Chief Clyde Miller  
 
A quorum was present and Mayor Murray opened the meeting.  
 
Approval of Minutes 

 
Mayor Murray presented the minutes from the regular meeting held on July 21, 2015 for 
approval.  Councilmember Hamblin made the motion to adopt the minutes as presented.  
Councilmember Butler seconded the motion and it carried. 
 
Mayor Murray presented the minutes from the workshop session held on July 28, 2015 
for approval.  Councilmember Dial made the motion to adopt the minutes as presented.  
Councilmember Hamblin seconded the motion and it carried. 
 
 
Special Recognition: NONE 
 
Visitors-  
 
1. Greg Lassiter of 5711 1st Street came before Council to ask why he has to have an 
attorney to get a copy of the Police Officer Body Cam video which captured an incident 
between him and the Satsuma Police Department.  Mayor Murray asked Chief McLean to 
respond.  Chief McLean replied to Mr. Lassiter stating that he has already discussed the 
matter with him and has explained that the video cannot be released due to privacy 
matters unless there is a request from an attorney.  He stated a request for evidence in a 
civil matter has to be made through the court system and a subpoena issued.  Attorney 
Bradley Sanders reiterated the issue stating there are State and Federal privacy laws and 
because this is a civil matter he will have to obtain a lawyer that can request the evidence 
to be released.    
 
2. Jack Presnall of 540 Maria Drive came before Council to raise a question concerning 
the ½ cent sales tax that is allocated to the school system.  Mr. Presnall begin by stating 
that he and the school system appreciate all that the city and city employees have done to 
help get the system going and their continued support.  He asked for the story behind the 
allocation so that the audience can have a better understanding of the matter.  Attorney 
Bradley Sanders stated that in order for the council to go into a discussion of this matter, 
there needed to be a vote.  Councilmember Dial made a motion to discuss the matter.  
Councilmember Hamblin seconded the motion and it carried.  Councilmember Williams 
begin by explaining that in 2011, the City Council contracted with Dr. Ira Harvey to do a 
feasibility study to see if the city could separate from the Mobile County Public School 
System and establish a city school system.  The study indicated the city could separate if 
the citizens would vote for a 7.5 mil increase in the ad valorem tax and the city could 
increase the sales tax by 1% to help with the start up.  An election was held and the ad 



C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g                  A u g u s t  4 ,  2 0 1 5          p a g e  | 3 
 

valorem tax passed which went directly to the school system.  The City then followed by 
passing an ordinance to increase the sales tax by 1%. The City Council at that time 
recognized the importance of a school system and agreed to give ½% of 1% sales tax 
increase to the school system.  Councilmember Williams stated that once it was decided 
that the city could separate, there was an outpouring of citizens that came together to do 
maintenance and make the schools presentable for the students.  
 
Mr. Presnall asked if there was a time limit or schedule for the allotment to the schools.  
Councilmember Williams stated that the study did indicated that it could take up to five 
(5) years for a school system to become stable; however the study did not stipulate a time 
frame.  
 
Mr. Presnall asked if the council could put a stipulation on the time frame and stated that 
if the city can’t provide the funding then the school board needs to know before they have 
prepared their budgets for the school year and for them to have to revise the budget 
would not be fair.  He stated that it is not fair for them to constantly face the fears of their 
funding being removed. Councilmember Williams agreed and stated that this issue has 
been discussed and he would like to open the floor and give every councilmember a 
chance to state where they stand on the matter.   Councilmember Williams stated that he 
does not believe that he will ever experience any public works that will impact this 
community more than the formation of the city school system and expressed vehemently 
that he is opposed to reducing the funding to the school and he will not vote to rescind the 
appropriation. 
 
Mr. Presnall asked for a commitment from this council as to how much longer the city 
can expect to receive the funds.  Bradley Sanders commented that this council cannot 
bind a future council with a commitment.   
 
Mayor Murray stated that he made a mistake when quoting that the city was $100,000 in 
the red.  He stated that the projections show that some revenue streams are down; 
however the city will be getting some BP fine money which will offset the decrease in 
revenues. 
 
Councilmember Dial expressed that he was embarrassed by the mayor’s interview on the 
local TV network that stated that the city was $100,000 short. Councilmember Dial stated 
that after reviewing the numbers the city is OK.  He stated that even if the city was short 
he would support the $108,000 appropriation to the school system. He reported that as of 
the end of July, the General Fund had over $160,000 in the account, garbage fund has 
$147, 000, Capital $463,000 and 4 cent $254,000.  He stated that some revenues may be 
down as the Mayor has stated but some revenues are up.  Councilmember Dial stated that 
as long as he is in office, he will not vote to reduce the funding to the schools. 
 
Councilmember Butler stated that during the discussions regarding revenues several 
items were discussed to help alleviate the shortage.  He stated that he is not against the 
school or the children, however he is in charge of public safety and his goal is to see a 
new public safety building.  He stated that the health department wrote a letter to the city 



C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g                  A u g u s t  4 ,  2 0 1 5          p a g e  | 4 
 

stating several items that needed to be repaired in the jail and that he is still waiting a 
report regarding the conditions in the fire station.   He stated the police department is in 
the red due to needed equipment purchases. However, the city has been ranked the 13th 
safest city in the State and the city has received a 4/4x ISO rating which neither has ever 
been achieved before. Councilmember Butler stated that the city did not know until 
Friday at 4:30 when an email was received that fine money would be forthcoming which 
will hopefully help with the shortfalls of revenue. 
 
Councilmember Black stated the he is always in favor of doing what is right with the 
citizens. He stated that a good school will bring in more revenue which will help with the 
budgets. He stated that he cannot vote to take away the funds now.  
 
Councilmember Hamblin stated that if not for volunteers we would not have Satsuma; the 
city cannot thrive without volunteers. He stated that two of the best accomplishments for 
the city were the purchase of Steele Creek Lodge and the separation from Mobile County 
Public School System.  
 
Councilmember Williams stated that there is a proven fact that with rising student 
achievement property values rise. 
 
A concerned citizens spoke and stated that she recently help with a raffle for a needy 
family and they were able to raise a lot of money; she suggested that the city look at 
having a raffle to help with the expenses for a new public safety building.  
 
Mayor Murray thanked Mr. Presnall for his questions.  
 
MAYOR’S AND COUNCIL’S REPORT: 
 
Mayor:  No items to discuss or report 
  
Parks:  No items to discuss or report 
 
Public Safety: 
1. Councilmember Butler reported that Chief McLean has been given confirmation from 
City of Mobile Chief Barber that the City of Mobile will donate five (5) police cars to the 
city.  Councilmember Butler stated that the cars are model 2005; however this will help 
with the police department fleet and the budget by not having to purchase any new cars.  
 
Municipal Services:  No items to report 
 
Administration:  
Councilmember Williams made a motion to have a workshop session on August 25, 2015 
at 5:30 P.M. to discuss the FY2016 budget.  Councilmember Dial seconded the motion 
and it carried. 
  
Public Works: 



C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g                  A u g u s t  4 ,  2 0 1 5          p a g e  | 5 
 

 
Councilmember Black reported that at the last meeting bids were opened to remove a tree 
at 65 Oakdale.  The lowest bidder, Lunn’s Outdoor, declined the job since he bid on the 
wrong tree.  Councilmember Black stated that the bid was awarded to Hammco, which 
was the next lowest bidder.  
 
Councilmember Black reported that James Elmore and Tom Briand met with the 
engineers that will be handling the engineering on Thomas Road.  He stated that Thomas 
Road is only a 25’ ROW and that the engineers stated they will pave the road as is if the 
council is in agreement.  Councilmember Black reported that the item was discussed in 
pre-council and then made a motion to approve paving Thomas Road AS IS.  
Councilmember Butler seconded the motion and it carried. 
 
.  ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
     1. Payment of the bills. 
 Councilmember Williams made a motion to pay the bills in the amount of 
 100,604.78 as presented. Councilmember Dial seconded the motion and it 
 carried. 
  
    2.  Agreement with Communications Technology for a new phone service and 
 phones for the Police, Fire and Public Works Department. 
 Councilmember Butler stated that Communication Technology has presented a 
 proposal in the amount of $6,103.00 for a new phone system and phones and 
 $279.50 for the battery backup.  He stated that in the agreement the city was given 
 the option to lease or purchase the equipment and that in both option the city will 
 have a five (5) warranty.  Councilmember Butler stated that the matter was 
 discussed in pre-council and then made a motion to approve pay the cash price  
 of $6382.50 instead of leasing the equipment.  Councilmember Williams 
 seconded the motion and it carried.   

 
3. Ratify the hiring of Brian Mims as Police Office 1  
 Councilmember Butler made a motion to ratify the hiring of Brian Mims.  
 Councilmember Dial seconded the motion and it carried.  
 
4.  Acceptance of the resignation from William Clay Squires, PSWI  
 Councilmember Black made a motion to accept the resignation in good standing.  
 Councilmember Dial seconded the motion and it carried.  
 
  

RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCE, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS 
NONE 

 
 
Adjournment 
 



C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g                  A u g u s t  4 ,  2 0 1 5          p a g e  | 6 
 

Councilmember Williams made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Councilmember Butler 
seconded the motion and the meeting adjourned at 7:51 P.M.   
 
_/s/ Paul Murray_________  _/s/ William Hamblin______  
Mayor Murray    Councilmember Hamblin 
 
_/s/ Mike Butler__________  _/s/ Matt Dial_)____________ 
Councilmember Butler  Councilmember Dial 
 
_/s/ Tom Williams_________ _/s/ Bill Black_____________   
Councilmember Williams  Councilmember Black 
 
ATTEST: _/s/ Vicki Miller______ 
City Clerk 


	MINUTES OF August 4, 2015

